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The Lafourche Parish Courthouse is located in the city of Thibodaux
in the northern portion of the parish, The courthouse is set on a small city
block 150 feet to each side., It is bordered to the north by W. 2nd Street,
to the south by W. 3rd Street, to the east by Maronge Street and to the west
by Green Street, which serves as its entrance., The immediate neighborhood
is characterized by low-scale govermment and commercial buildings.

The heavy masonry central block dates from 1858, but was significantly
remodeled about 1903, This remodeling included the addition of the facade
treatment, the portico, and the square-domed roof structures. 1In the
twentieth century, 4 wings have been appended to the old square courthouse
leaving only thé west facade, with its portico, exposed. In 1959 the interior
of the old 1858 courthouse was remodeled. The cross corridore plan and the
unexposed walls are all that survive of the original courthouse building.

The building is constructed of masonry sheathed in stucco.

The architecturally significant aspect of the building is its exterior.
The exterior design of the original portion, which dates from 1903, was
inspired by the influence of the Beaux Arts. This can be seen in its overly
heavy combination of classical and Baroque elements--its massive concrete
Roman Doric portico and in its five square Baroque domes. A large central
dome rises from a high square drum and is crowned by a square parapet with
a central oval medallion on each side. This motif is in turn surmounted by a
second squdre dome. The oval medallion parapet motif forms the base for each
of the four smaller amcillary square domes. . Each dome is sheathed in -copper.
Together the five domes enliven the skyline of the courthouse considerably.

Pains were taken to articulate the twentieth century wings in a classical
style. The north and south wings have colossal order pilasters and
pedamented ends. Like the facade of the old portion, these wings are ornamented
with festoons. The east and southeast wings are more simply articulated.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Lafourche Parish Courthouse has significance in the areas of
architecture and politics/govermment. The Lafourche Parish Courthouse, the
tallest structure in the city, is a local landmark in Thibodaux. -It is
aggressively monumental in its use of heavy classical and Baroque elements.
The combination of bulbous square domes enlivens the skyline and gives a grand
pictoral effect which reflects the taste of the late 19th century Beaux Arts,
as does the massive portico. Although the courthouse does not represent a
sophisticated design, it makes the big, broad, gesture which was so much a
part of Beaux Arts architecture during the late 19th and early 20th centuries.
It also makes a strong statement about the importance of its role in the
community and the parish. 1In addition it represents, as few govermment
buildings in Louisiana do, a major tendency toward the use of the Beaux Arts
style in govermment buildings around the turn of the century.

As the second oldest courthouse in Louisiana still used for parochial
purposes, the Lafourche Parish Courthouse possesses significarce in the area
of politics/govermment. The City of Thibodaux has been the seat of parish
government since 1808. At that time the parish began using as its courthouse
a one-story frame structure located at the intersection of Green and Second
Streets. But in 1818, Henry Schuyler Thibodaux, the founder of Thibodaux
and of the parishes of Lafourche and Terrebonne, donated a 140-foot square
tract of land (the site of the present courthouse) to the parish on the
condition that the police jury exempt his hotel and billard hall from taxes.
On this site, the parish erected a three-room courthouse measuring 25 by 40 feet.
Later, in 1846, a two-story structure was built, but within fifteen years it
was replaced by the present building.

Meeting in September, 1852, the Lafourche Parish Police Jury passed
a resolution providing that "three members be named to. . . the Building
Committee which committee shall cause plans and specifications to be made for the
building of a neat and commodeous (sic) Court House in the town of Thibodaux
the cost of the said Court House not to exceed Fifteen Thousand dollars."
Police jurors named to the committee included John Lyall, F. Michel, and
A. B, Thibodaux. Construction began on the building around 1858 and was
completed before 1862.

(continued)
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The nominated area encompasses the city block frnntlngbogx Green Street
on which the courthouse sits.
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During the twentieth century there have been several major additions to the
structure (see attached diagrams). The first of these came in 1903 under the
direction of the architectural firm Favrot and Livaudais, Two wings were
added to the Third and Maronge street sides, and the copper domes were added
to the roof. 1In addition, a concrete portico similar to but heavier than the
one on the Second Street side was erected on the Green Street side. In 1951
the police jury supervised the adding of another wing on Maronge Street,
and in 1958 it removed the building's original front and portico, replacing
them with yet another wing. As a result of this latest renovation, carried
out by J. B. Talley and Co. under the direction of local Thibodaux architect
Fernand Picou, the Green Street entrance became the front of the courthouse.

Over the years the courthouse has been the focal point of political
activities within Lafourche Parish, U. S. Senator Henry Clay purportedly
visited the courthouse while in Thibodaux sometime in the 1840's. But more
than casual visitors to the building included the Episcopalian Bishop
Leonidas L. Polk (the '"Fighting Bishop'" of the Confederacy) and Confederate
General Braxton Bragg, both of whom owned nearby sugar plantations.
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